
LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Special Meeting 

AGENDA 
Lemoore Council Chamber 

429 ‘C’ Street 

January 23, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

3. RECOGNITION OF RE-APPOINTMENT TO THE COMMISSION – Bob Clement

4. NOTIFICATION OF VACANCY – Commissioner Michael Dey Stepping Down

5. REORGANIZATION OF COMMISSIONERS – Election of Officers (Chair and Vice-Chair)

6. PUBLIC COMMENT – Public comment will be in accordance with the attached policy. This time is
reserved for members of the audience to address the Planning Commission on items of interest that are not on
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission. It is recommended that speakers limit
their comments to three (3) minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on
items on the Agenda. The Commission is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are
not on the Agenda. Prior to addressing the Commission, any handouts for Commission will be provided to the
Commission Secretary for distribution to the Commission and appropriate staff. The public will have an opportunity
to comment on items on the agenda once the item has been called and the Chair opens the item to the public.

7. APPROVAL OF NEW MEETING START TIME – A request to change the 7:00 p.m. start
time for Regular Meetings of the Planning Commission to 5:30 p.m.

8. PUBLIC HEARING – A request by Lennar Homes to amend Major Site Plan Review No. 2020-
01 to remove master home plan 7511 and modify elevations of the Clementine Master Home
Plan Series 7512, 7514, 7515 for Subdivision Tract 848, an approved 362-lot single-family
residential subdivision to be developed in three phases with a 1.06-acre park on 54.1 acres.
The project is located south of Bush Street and east of College Avenue, in the City of Lemoore
(APNs: 023-510-040 and 023-480-031, 023-660-001 through 075, and 023-680-001 through
055, and 023-670-011 through 064).  In accordance with the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA), this project is covered by the common sense exemption that CEQA applies only
to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. It can
be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a
significant effect on the environment, therefore the activity is not subject to CEQA per CA
Code Regulations Title 14 § 15061(b)(3).

9. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

10. COMMISSION REPORTS / REQUESTS

11. ADJOURNMENT

Upcoming Meetings 
Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission, March 13, 2023 



Agendas for all City Council meetings are posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the Council Chamber, 429 C 
Street and the Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive. Written communications from the public for the 
agenda must be received by the City Clerk’s Office no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date. The City of 
Lemoore complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990). The Council Chamber is accessible to the 
physically disabled. Should you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6744, at least 4 business days prior to 
the meeting. 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

I, Kristie Baley, Planning Commission Secretary for the City of Lemoore, do hereby declare that I 
posted the above Planning Commission Agenda for the Special Meeting of Monday, January 23, 
2023 at Council Chamber, 429 C Street and Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon 
Drive, Lemoore CA on January 20, 2023. 

//s//
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 



CITY OF LEMOORE 
PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING 

January 23, 2023 @ 5:30 p.m. 

Attendance and Public Comment Changes Due to COVID-19 

The Lemoore Planning Commission will be conducting its special meeting on January 23, 2023. 
Given the current Shelter-In-Place covering Kings County and the Social Distance Guidelines 
issued by Federal, State, and Local Authorities, the City is implementing the following changes 
for attendance and public comment. 

All upcoming regular and special Planning Commission meetings will be open to fifteen (15) 
members of the public on a first come, first served basis and via Zoom. The meeting may be 
viewed through the following options: 

• Join Zoom Meeting
• Please click the link below to join the webinar:
• https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85403131306?pwd=cUVjU29NdzVuWUhoNjZZUDZScVl0UT09
• Meeting ID: 854 0313 1306
• Passcode: 204805
• Phone: +1 669 900 6833 US

The City will also provide links to streaming options on the City’s website. 

If you wish to make a general public comment or public comment on a particular item on the 
agenda, participants may do so via Zoom during the meeting or by submitting public 
comments by e-mail to: planning@lemoore.com.  In the subject line of the e-mail, please state 
your name and the item you are commenting on.  If you wish to submit a public comment on more 
than one agenda item, please send a separate e-email for each item you are commenting on.  Please 
be aware that written public comments, including your name, may become public information. 
Additional requirements for submitting public comments by e-mail are provided below.  

General Public Comments & Comments on Planning Commission Business Items 

For general public comments and comments regarding specific Planning Commission Business 
Items, public comments can be made via Zoom during the meeting or all public comments must 
be received by e-mail no later than 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments received by this 
time will be read aloud by a staff member during the applicable agenda item, provided that such 
comments may be read within the normal three (3) minutes allotted to each speaker.  Any portion 
of your comment extending past three (3) minutes may not be read aloud due to time restrictions. 
If a general public comment or comment on a business item is received after 5:00 p.m., efforts will 
be made to read your comment into the record.  However, staff cannot guarantee that written 
comments received after 5:00 p.m. will be read.  All written comments that are not read into the 
record will be made part of the meeting minutes, provided that such comments are received prior 
to the end of the Planning Commission meeting. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85403131306?pwd=cUVjU29NdzVuWUhoNjZZUDZScVl0UT09


Public Hearings 
 
For public comment on a public hearing, all public comments must be received by the close of the 
public hearing period.  All comments received by the close of the public hearing period will be 
read aloud by a staff member during the applicable agenda item, provided that such comments 
may be read within the normal three (3) minutes allotted to each speaker.  Any portion of your 
comment extending past three (3) minutes may not be read aloud due to time restrictions.  If a 
comment on a public hearing item is received after the close of the public hearing, such comment 
will be made part of the meeting minutes, provided that such comment is received prior to the end 
of the meeting.  
 
*PLEASE BE AWARE THAT ANY PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED THAT DO NOT 
SPECIFY A PARTICULAR AGENDA ITEM WILL BE READ ALOUD DURING THE 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT PORTION OF THE AGENDA.* 
 
The City thanks you for your cooperation in advance. Our community’s health and safety is our 
highest priority. 
 



City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 W. Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744 

Staff Report
         

To: Lemoore Planning Commission Item No. 5
From: Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary
Date: January 20, 2023 Meeting Date: January 23, 2023
Subject: Planning Commission Reorganization – Election of Chair and Vice-

Chair

Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the Planning Commissioners initiate the process for the election 
of the Chair and Vice-Chair.

Reorganization Procedure:
The Planning Commission Secretary will chair the reorganization process.  The chair shall 
call for nominations.  Any Planning Commissioner may nominate another Planning 
Commissioner or himself/herself.  When there are no further nominations, the chair will 
close the nominations and call for a motion to approve a nominee.  A Planning 
Commissioner may make a motion to approve any of the nominees.  If the motion fails, a 
Planning Commissioner may make a motion to approve a different nominee.   Upon a 
second and a majority vote of the Commissioners, a nominee shall become the Chair to 
serve a one year term.   The same process is followed for the position of Vice-Chair. 

Role and Responsibilities – The Chair or Presiding Officer shall preserve order and 
decorum at all meeting of the advisory body.  The Chair is responsible for ensuring the 
effectiveness of the group process and to guide the advisory body by adhering to the 
rules of conduct contained in this policy and in the Brown Act.  

A. The Presiding Officer may move, second, and debate from the Chair, subject only 
to such limitations of debate as are imposed on all Commission Members, and 
he/she shall not be deprived of any of the rights and privileges of a Commission 
Member by reason of his or her acting as Presiding Officer; and

B. The Presiding Officer shall preserve order and decorum and confine members in 
debate to the question under discussion; and

C. The Presiding Officer shall state all questions submitted for a vote and announce 
the results of that roll call vote; and 



 
D. The Presiding Officer shall determine, based on the meeting agenda, a schedule 

for consistent breaks for the Board/Commissions; and   
 

E. The Presiding Officer shall ensure that he/she, as well as the balance of the 
Commission, refrains from commenting or entering into conversation with 
speakers during public comments or during public hearing, until all speakers have 
been heard; and  

 
F. The Presiding Officer shall determine points of order, subject to the right of any 

member to appeal to the Council; and  
 

G. The Presiding Officer shall ensure that members of the public who address the 
Board/Commission from Public Comment address matters “not appearing” on the 
agenda which is of interest to such person and which is within the jurisdiction of 
the Board, Commission or Committee.  Speakers shall not use Public Comment 
for additional comments regarding an item that has already been heard earlier in 
the meeting or is still to be heard. 

 
 
Budget Impact: 
None. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 



City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 W. Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744

Staff Report
         

To: Lemoore Planning Commission Item No. 7
From: Kristie Baley, Management Analyst
Date: January 20, 2023 Meeting Date: January 23, 2023
Subject: Change the Meeting Time for Future Regular Meetings of the Planning 

Commission 

Proposed Motion:

Move to change the start time for Regular Meetings of the Planning Commission to 5:30 p.m.

Discussion:

Staff determined that one start time for Planning Commission and City Council meetings may 
be beneficial to the community, those who serve on the Commission, and staff and 
developers who often times must travel before and after the meeting. The Commissioners 
were contacted individually to determine if an earlier start time would affect their ability to 
serve on the Commission and a positive response was received by each Commissioner.

A unanimous vote will change the start time of future Planning Commission meetings..The 
Planning Commission will continue to meet on the second Monday of the month, while the 
City Council meets the first and third Tuesday of the month.  

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission formally change the start time for future 
regular meetings of the Planning Commission by role call vote.  

Budget Impact:

None.



“In God We Trust” 1 

      
City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744

Staff Report
                 

To: Lemoore Planning Commission Item No. 8
From: Steve Brandt, City Planner
Date: January 17, 2023 Meeting Date: January 23, 2023

Subject: Amendment to Major Site Plan Review No. 2020-01: A request by Lennar 
Homes to remove master home plan 7511 and modify elevations of the 
Clementine Master Home Plan Series 7512, 7514, 7515 for Subdivision Tract 
848, an approved 362-lot single-family residential subdivision to be developed 
in three phases with a 1.06-acre park on 54.1 acres. The project is located 
south of Bush Street and east of College Avenue, in the City of Lemoore 
(APNs: 023-510-040 and 023-480-031, 023-660-001 through 075, and 023-
680-001 through 055, and 023-670-011 through 064).  

Proposed Motion:

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2023-01, approving the request for modification of Master 
Home Plans (Clementine Series) for Major Site Plan Review No. 2020-01 of Subdivision Map 
Tract 848 in accordance with the findings and conditions in the resolution.

Project Proposal:

This project is requesting the removal of Master Home Plan 7511 and modifications to the 
Master Home Plan elevations for 7512, 7514, 7515 previously approved for Subdivision Tract 
No. 848 to consist of 362 single-family lots with a park and landscaped trail. The project is 
proposed to be constructed in three planned phases. Lot sizes range from 4,000 square feet 
to 12,315 square feet, with an average lot size of 5,138 square feet. The previous approval 
of elevations and floor plans consisted of nine home plans to be built on the lots. Eight of the 
nine approved elevation plans have three different elevation types, and one has two elevation 
types. All approved elevations have similar roof lines. The approved plans are attached at 
the end of this report. The following list describes the specific changes with each plan.



 “In God We Trust” 2 

Plan 7511:  Plan no longer offered. 
 

Plan 7512 A & B:   
 Remove scabbed on roof above bedroom 3 window.  

 Change to decorative vent below gable roof.   
 One carriage light to be centered over garage (Currently two carriage lights above 

garage. 
 Change decorative garage door with windows to 4 panel door with (no windows).   
 Upgrade front door with larger glass panel.  
 2 roof color options (currently only one available for 10 home color scheme options). 

Plan 7512 C:      
 Remove scabbed on roof above bedroom 3 window.  

 Change to decorative vent under gable roof. 
 One carriage light to be centered over garage. (Currently two carriage lights above 

garage. 
 Change garage surround from stone/brick to stucco. 
 Change decorative garage door with windows to 4 panel door with windows. 
 Upgrade front door with larger glass panel. 
 2 roof color options (currently only one available for 10 home color scheme options). 

Plan 7514 A & B:   
 Change decorative garage door with windows to 4 panel door with (no windows). 
 Upgrade front door with larger glass panel. 
 2 roof color options (currently only one available for 10 home color scheme options). 

Plan 7514 C:    
 Change garage surround from stone/brick to stucco. 
 Change decorative garage door with windows to 4 panel door with windows. 
 Replace siding on front facing gable with stucco.  
 Add carriage lights to either side of garage 
 Change entry post from stucco to stone. 
 Upgrade front door with larger glass panel.  
 2 roof color options (currently only one available for 10 home color scheme options). 

Plan 7515 A & B:  
 Replace scabbed on roof above garage with decorative stucco band. 
 Change entry post from stucco to stone. 
 Add two carriage lights to either side of garage. 
 Change decorative garage door with windows to 4 panel door with windows. 
 Upgrade front door with larger glass panel.  
 2 roof color options (currently only one available for 10 home color scheme options). 



 “In God We Trust” 3 

Applicant Lennar Homes 
Location Directly east of West Hills College Lemoore, bounded by Bush 

Street to the north, Semas Drive to the east, Pedersen Street 
to the south, and College Avenue to the west. 

Existing Land Use Vacant Land 
APN(s) 023-510-040 and 023-480-031, (023-660-001 through 075, 

and 023-680-001 through 055, and 023-670-011 through 064) 
Home Size Min. 1,103 sq.ft. – Max. 2,985 sq.ft. 
Lot Size Min. 4,000 sq.ft. – Max. 12,315 sq.ft.  
Current Zoning Neighborhood Commercial (NC), Low Density Residential 

(RLD), Low-Medium Density Residential (RLMD), Medium 
Density Residential (RMD) 

Current General Plan Neighborhood Commercial, Low Density Residential,  
Low-Medium Density Residential, Medium Density Residential 

 
 

Adjacent Land Use, Zones, and General Plan Designations:  

 

Direction  Current Use  Zone  General Plan  

North Fallow land RMD Medium Density Residential 

South Fallow land CF Community Facilities 

East Fallow land RC and 
RLMD 

Regional Commercial and 
Low-Medium Density 

Residential 
West West Hills College CF Community Facilities 

    
 

Previous Relevant Actions: 

The City Council accepted the Planning Commission’s recommendation and adopted 
Resolution No. 2020-20 approving Tentative Subdivision Map Tract 848 and Major Site Plan 
Review No. 2020-01 to divide 54.1 acres into 362 single-family lots and approval of nine 
single-family master home plans on June 2, 2020. Nine floor plans were submitted with 
square footages of between 1,460 and 3,240 square feet. Four of the homes approved are 
single-story and five are two-story.  The floor plans have not changed. 

 



 “In God We Trust” 4 

Residential Master Home Plans: 

Review of residential master home plans is part of the Major Site Plan Review process for 
new residential subdivisions. The architecture of the home plans is depicted in the attached 
submittal package from the applicant, Lennar Homes. There are now eight floor plans with 
square footages of between 1,635 and 3,240 square feet. Three of the homes are single-
story and five are two-story. 

Staff reviewed the home master plans and elevations for conformance with Lemoore’s 
Zoning Ordinance Section 9-5C-3 (Design Standards for Residential Projects.) Subsection 
B2a requires that “front facade designs of home plans in residential subdivisions shall, by 
look and appearance, be substantially different from one another.” In the staff report that 
analyzed the original submittal it was noted that, “The types of facades are differentiated by 
front façade detailing.  However, the differentiations are slight, and the homes do have a 
roughly similar look.” The changes being proposed now, including the change from four 
homes in the 7000 series to three, appear to have the affect of making the homes more 
similar looking. 

The applicant has stated that the need to the change is driven by the increased rates and 
supply chain issues.  Having more uniform façade details in the homes mitigates against 
supply chain problems and lowering costs allows home prices to be more manageable as 
interest rates increase. 

Staff usually uses a combination of differing floor plans (which usually result in different 
looking facades), different elevation designs, and different elevation details to make the 
determination that homes will appear to be substantially different from one another.  In this 
case, Staff recommends that the difference in color options also be a consideration. Adding 
this variable and requiring different color schemes within the ‘six-pack’ should meet the intent 
of the six-pack rule in Section 9-5C-3 B2a.  The condition related to master home plans has 
been amended to add this requirement.   

Environmental Assessment: 

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), this project is covered 
by the common sense exemption that CEQA applies only to projects that have the potential 
for causing a significant effect on the environment. It can be seen with certainty that there is 
no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, 
therefore the activity is not subject to CEQA per CA Code Regulations Title 14 § 15061(b)(3).  

Recommended Findings: 

Staff has prepared a resolution recommending approval of the master home plan changes 
with conditions listed below. A draft of the resolution is attached. After the hearing, the 
Commission may modify the elevations or add conditions before voting on the project. The 
Planning Commission is the approving authority.  Appeals will be directed to the City Council. 



 “In God We Trust” 5 

Staff recommends that the original findings be included in the Commission’s approval.  These 
findings are required by the Zoning Ordinance to be made to approve the project.  

 
1. The General Plan Amendment is in the public interest, and the General Plan, as 

amended, will remain internally consistent. The land use designation changes result 
in no net gain or loss in residential density and comply with State law prohibiting 
general plan changes to a less intensive use or reducing intensity of land use.  

2. The project implements a goal of the General Plan to develop residential uses around 
West Hills College. 

3. The Zoning Map Amendment of the map is consistent with the General Plan goals, 
policies, and implementation programs. 

4. The Planned Unit Development (PUD) is compatible and in conformity with public 
convenience, general welfare, and good land use and zoning practice. The PUD 
provides for alternative development standards that will increase the density of the 
site while avoiding negative impacts. 

5. The PUD will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and general welfare of the City. 
6. The PUD will not adversely affect the orderly development of property or the 

preservation of property values as the project involves the development of well-
designed single-family homes.  

7. The Tentative Subdivision Map is consistent with the General Plan and all applicable 
provisions of the Zoning Code as modified by the PUD. 

8. The proposed project will not be substantially detrimental to adjacent property and will 
not materially impair the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance or the public interest. 

9. As proposed and conditioned herein, the site design of the project is consistent with 
the new residential development standards in the Zoning Ordinance, as modified by 
the PUD. 

10. The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the General Plan and 
complies with applicable zoning regulations, including the proposed overlay zone for 
the PUD, specific plan provisions, and improvement standards adopted by the City. 

11. The proposed architecture, site design, and landscape are suitable for the purposes 
of the building and the site and will enhance the character of the neighborhood and 
community. 

12. The architecture, character, and scale of the buildings and the site are compatible with 
the character of buildings on adjoining and nearby properties. 

13. The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 
transportation modes of circulation. 

14. The project’s lot sizes are consistent with densities in the General Plan and are 
appropriate for this site. 



 “In God We Trust” 6 

15. The General Plan Amendment shall include that all references to the College Drive in 
the General Plan shall be changed to College Avenue. 

Original Conditions 

Staff recommends that the following conditions be placed on the Planned Unit Development 
2020-01 and Tentative Subdivision Map Tract 848. Condition No. 32 has been modified to 
require that color palettes be submitted with each plot plan/build permit application to ensure 
that the adjacent homes are substantially different in look and appearance. 

1. The site shall be developed consistent with the approved Tentative Subdivision Map, 
as modified by the Planned Unit Development, these conditions, and applicable 
development standards found in the Zoning Ordinance and Lemoore Municipal Code. 

2. The site shall be developed consistent with this report and with the Major Site Plan 
Review comments dated April 17, 2020. 

3. The project shall be developed and maintained in substantial compliance with the 
Tentative Subdivision Map Tract 848, except for any modifications that may be needed 
to meet these conditions of approval. 

4. The final subdivision map shall be submitted in accordance with City ordinances and 
standards. The gas pipeline corridor shall be designated a non-numbered lot and 
dedicated to the City.  The area shown as “future development” shall be designated a 
remainder parcel. 

5. The developer shall incorporate the mitigation measures, as identified in the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, into the project. 

6. Plans for all public and private improvements, including but not limited to, water, 
sewer, storm drainage, road pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, street lights, 
landscaping, and fire hydrants shall be approved by the City Engineer, and these 
improvements shall be completed in accordance with the approved plans to the 
satisfaction of the Public Works Director. 

7. On-site and off-site traffic and street improvements shall be constructed per these 
conditions, the Major Site Plan Review 2020-01 comments, and the mitigation 
measures in the Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

8. Perimeter arterial roadways shall be constructed and widened per City standards and 
the cross-sections on the Tentative Subdivision Map as follows: 

 In Phase 1, Bush Street from Semas Drive to the most westerly gas pipeline 
easement, Semas Drive between Bush Street and the south side of Harvard 
Drive, and College Avenue between the south side of Boston Way and most 
northerly gas pipeline easement.   



 “In God We Trust” 7 

 In Phase 2, College Avenue from Boston Way to Pedersen Street, Pedersen 
Street from College Avenue to the east side of Lot 219. 

 In Phase 3, Pedersen Street from the east side of Lot 219 to Semas Drive, 
Semas Drive from the south side of Harvard Drive to Pedersen Street. 

9. Ponding basin and storm drainage improvements shall be constructed per the Major 
Site Plan Review No. 2020-01 comments. 

10. A landscaped trail between the existing gas pipeline easements in the northwest area 
of the project site from Bush Street to College Avenue shall be constructed prior to the 
final inspection of the 5th new home constructed in Phase 2, with a trail connection to 
the Yale Circle cul-de-sac between Lots 176 and 177 and a sidewalk or trail 
connection from the trail to Boston Way along College Avenue. The acreage of the 
landscaped area may be counted toward park land dedication requirements in Section 
8-7N-4 of the City Municipal Code. The landscaping and amenities will include, but 
not be limited to, trees, shrubbery, grass, waste containers at each end of the trail, 
solar-powered lighting at 120-foot intervals, and three benches.  Signage at the trail 
ends at Bush Street and College Avenue shall be required.  Landscaping, amenities 
and signage to be approved by the Community Development Director prior to 
installation. 

11. The park south of West Hills Way shall be constructed and opened to the public for 
use, including playground amenities, prior to completion of the 5th home in Phase 1 
(not including model homes).   

12. Park land in-lieu fees shall be paid to the City for 5.79 acres minus the acres provided 
for the park and landscaped trail on the improvement plans, in accordance with the 
procedures in Section 8-7N-4 of the City Municipal Code. Fees shall be paid prior to 
approval of the Final Map. 

13. A public facilities maintenance district (PFMD) shall be formed in conjunction with the 
Final Map acceptance in order to provide the maintenance costs for the park, 
landscape trail, common landscaping, street maintenance, and other improvements 
in accordance with existing City policy. 

14. The project shall be subject to the applicable development impact fees adopted by 
resolution of the City Council. 

15. In conjunction with approval of the Final Map, a noise and odor easement shall be 
recorded on all lots created, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, to acknowledge 
the presence of nearby industry, railroad, and freeways, and the right of the such uses 
to continue to emit such noise and odors as are otherwise allowable by law and to 
ensure that such uses in these areas are not unreasonably hindered by residential 
users and owners that move in or nearby at a later date. 



 “In God We Trust” 8 

16. In conjunction with approval of the Final Map, an easement shall be recorded on all 
lots created identifying that the property is near a military installation subject to high 
aircraft noise, low level aircraft, aircraft tests, and/or other military related issues.  

17. New residences shall be constructed so as to attain an indoor noise level of 45 
decibels (45 dB CNEL), in accordance with noise attenuation standards of the City 
adopted building code. 

18. The developer shall comply with the standards, provisions, and requirements of the 
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District that relate to the project. 

19. A minimum six-foot eight-inch (6’ 8”) high block wall with decorative columns and caps 
at least every 100 feet shall be constructed per City standards adjacent to College 
Avenue, Pedersen Street, Semas Drive, and Bush Street adjacent to Lots 155 and 
156.  Landscaping shall be added to cover at least 50% of the wall within five years of 
installation. 

20. A wrought iron fence (or equivalent material acceptable to the Community 
Development Director) shall be constructed to City standards along the west property 
lines of lots 157 to 177 to separate the subdivision from the trail. 

21. Fire hydrant and connection types and locations shall be approved by the Lemoore 
Volunteer Fire Department. 

22. Concrete pads for installation of mailboxes shall be provided in accordance with 
determinations made by the Lemoore Postmaster. 

23. Street trees from the City approved street tree list shall be planted with root barriers 
as per Public Works Standards and Specifications. 

24. Streetlights shall be provided within the project as per City local streetlight standards.  

25. One or more Kings Area Rural Transit (KART) bus stops shall be constructed, if 
required, at locations directed by KART. 

26. The sidewalk type along local streets (parkway type or curb adjacent type) shall be 
consistent throughout all phases of the subdivision, as per City standards. 

27. The sidewalk type along arterial and collector streets shall be parkway type and 
consistent with City standards.  

28. Any existing roadway, sidewalk, or curb and gutter that is damaged during 
construction shall be repaired or replaced to the satisfaction of the Public Works 
Director. 

29. Subdivision entrance signage is required at the Harvard Drive entrance.  Subdivision 
entrance signage shall be allowed at other entrances.  All signs shall require a sign 
permit separate from the building permit. 



 “In God We Trust” 9 

30. Lot sizes less than 7,000 square feet, consistent with the sizes shown on the Tentative 
Subdivision Map Tract 848, shall be adopted per the PUD established by the City 
Council. 

31. The building setbacks shall be per the adopted PUD established by the City Council.  
The minimum building setbacks recommended to the Council are as follows:  

 
Required Setbacks PUD No. 2020-01 

Front to Living Space (minimum) 
12 feet to one-story - See note 
12 feet to covered porch 
15 feet to two-story  

Front to Garage (minimum) 20 feet 

Interior Side (minimum) 5 feet 

Street Side (minimum) 10 feet 

Rear (minimum) 10 feet for one-story 
15 feet for two-story 

Height (maximum) 35 feet 

Note – Plan 7512 (Olive) may have a 10-foot minimum front setback to 
living space on lots less than 84 feet deep.  Plan 7512 (Olive) shall not 
be constructed on corner lots less than 84 feet deep. 

 

32. Master home plans shall be substantially consistent to the floor plans and elevations 
submitted with the Tentative Subdivision Map Tract 848 and as modified by this 
amendment to the major site plan review, unless subsequently modified by the 
Planning Commission. Detailing used on the front of the home shall be carried around 
(or wrapped around) to the street side of the home where the side of the home is 
visible from the public street, such as in front of the fence. In addition to typical 
submittal requirements for building permit to determine consistency with Section 9-
5C-3 B2a (the six-pack requirement), a color palette shall be submitted with each 
building permit application to verify that the combination similar floor plans in the 6-
pack will have enough variation between a combination of elevation design and paint 
color to be considered ‘substantially different from one another’. 

33. The project and all subsequent uses must meet the requirements found in Section 9-
5B-2 of the Zoning Ordinance related to noise, odor, and vibration, and maintenance. 

34. The Tentative Subdivision Map Tract 848 approval shall expire two years from the 
date of City Council approval, unless a Final Map is filed or an extension is granted 
via legislation or by the City, in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act. Expiration 
dates for the Major Site Plan Review 2020-01 and Planned Unit Development  
2020-01 shall run consistent with the expiration date of the Tentative Subdivision Map. 



 “In God We Trust” 10 

Attachments: 

Site Location – Aerial Photo 
Approved Tentative Subdivision Map – Tract 848 
Elevation Comparison Clementine Series – Approved vs. Proposed 
Draft Resolution 
Applicant Request for Modified Plan Elevations 
City Council Resolution No. 2020-20 – dated June 2, 2020  
Building Elevations and Floor Plans Approved June 2, 2020 – 9 sets 
  



 “In God We Trust” 11 

 

Site Location – Aerial Photo 
Tract No. 848 

 



 “In God We Trust” 12 

 

Tentative Subdivision Map 
Tract No. 848  

     

 



Approved Master Plan Options the Plum Plan 7511 To be Removed from Master Home Plan Options

X

X

X



Approved Master Plan Option the Olive Plan 7512 1,635 sq. ft. Proposed Elevation 



Approved Master Plan Option the Dewberry Plan 7514 Proposed Elevation 



Approved Master Plan Option the Permission Plan 7515 Proposed Elevation



   

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE  

APPROVING MODIFICATIONS TO MASTER HOME PLANS CLEMENTINE SERIES AMENDING 
MAJOR SITE PLAN REVIEW NO. 2020-01 FOR SUBDIVISION MAP TRACT 848  

LOCATED SOUTH OF BUSH STREET AND EAST OF COLLEGE AVENUE, 
IN THE CITY OF LEMOORE 

 
 
At a Special Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore (City) duly called and 
held on January 23, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Commissioner 
______________, seconded by Commissioner ______________, and carried that the following 
Resolution be adopted: 

WHEREAS, Lennar Homes has requested an amendment Major Site Plan Review No. 
2020- modifications to master home plans Clementine Series 7511, 7512, 7514, and 7515 
amending Major Site Plan Review No. 2020-02, located south of Bush Street and east of College 
Avenue, in the City of Lemoore (APNs: 023-510-040 and 023-480-031, 023-660-001 through 075, 
and 023-680-001 through 055, and 023-670-011 through 064); and 

WHEREAS, the proposed site is 54.1 acres in size and is zoned Low Density Residential, 
Low-Medium Density Residential, Medium Density Residential; and 

WHEREAS, this project is covered by the common sense exemption that CEQA applies 
only to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. It can 
be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant 
effect on the environment, therefore the activity is not subject to CEQA per Cal Code of 
Regulations Title 14 § 15061(b)(3); and 

WHEREAS, the Lemoore Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing at its 
January 23, 2023, meeting. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Lemoore hereby makes the following findings regarding the proposed projects, based on facts 
detailed in the January 23, 2023, staff report, which is hereby incorporated by reference, as well 
as the evidence and comments presented during the Public Hearing: 

1. The General Plan Amendment is in the public interest, and the General Plan, as amended, 
will remain internally consistent. The land use designation changes result in no net gain or 
loss in residential density and comply with State law prohibiting general plan changes to a 
less intensive use or reducing intensity of land use. The shorter setbacks allow for an 
increased number of residential units overall in the project area.  

2. The project implements a goal of the General Plan to develop residential uses around West 
Hills College. 

3. The Zoning Map Amendment of the map is consistent with the General Plan goals, policies, 
and implementation programs. 

4. The Planned Unit Development (PUD) is compatible and in conformity with public 
convenience, general welfare, and good land use and zoning practice. The PUD provides for 
alternative development standards that will increase the density of the site while avoiding 
negative impacts. 

5. The PUD will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and general welfare of the City. 



   

6. The PUD will not adversely affect the orderly development of property or the preservation of 
property values as the project involves the development of well-designed single-family homes.  

7. The Tentative Subdivision Map is consistent with the General Plan and all applicable 
provisions of the Zoning Code as modified by the PUD. 

8. The proposed project will not be substantially detrimental to adjacent property and will not 
materially impair the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance or the public interest. 

9. As proposed and conditioned herein, the site design of the project is consistent with the new 
residential development standards in the Zoning Ordinance, as modified by the PUD. 

10. The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the General Plan and complies with 
applicable zoning regulations, including the proposed overlay zone for the PUD, specific plan 
provisions, and improvement standards adopted by the City. 

11. The proposed architecture, site design, and landscape are suitable for the purposes of the 
building and the site and will enhance the character of the neighborhood and community. 

12. The architecture, character, and scale of the building and the site are compatible with the 
character of buildings on adjoining and nearby properties. 

13. The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 
transportation modes of circulation. 

14. The project’s lot sizes are consistent with densities in the General Plan and are appropriate 
for this site. 

15. The General Plan Amendment shall include that all references to the College Drive in the 
General Plan shall be changed to College Avenue. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore 
hereby approves the amendment to Major Site Plan Review No. 2020-01 with an additional 
requirement to require that color palettes be submitted with each plot plan/build permit application 
to ensure that the adjacent homes are substantially different in look and appearance, as specified 
in amended Condition No. 32, and along with the other original conditions:  

1. The site shall be developed consistent with the approved Tentative Subdivision Map, as 
modified by the Planned Unit Development, these conditions, and applicable development 
standards found in the Zoning Ordinance and Lemoore Municipal Code. 

2. The site shall be developed consistent with this report and with the Major Site Plan Review 
comments dated April 17, 2020. 

3. The project shall be developed and maintained in substantial compliance with the Tentative 
Subdivision Map Tract 848, except for any modifications that may be needed to meet these 
conditions of approval. 

4. The final subdivision map shall be submitted in accordance with City ordinances and 
standards. The gas pipeline corridor shall be designated a non-numbered lot and dedicated 
to the City.  The area shown as “future development” shall be designated a remainder parcel. 

5. The developer shall incorporate the mitigation measures, as identified in the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, into the project. 

6. Plans for all public and private improvements, including but not limited to, water, sewer, storm 
drainage, road pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, street lights, landscaping, and fire 



   

hydrants shall be approved by the City Engineer, and these improvements shall be completed 
in accordance with the approved plans to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director. 

7. On-site and off-site traffic and street improvements shall be constructed per these conditions, 
the Major Site Plan Review 2020-01 comments, and the mitigation measures in the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration. 

8. Perimeter arterial roadways shall be constructed and widened per City standards and the 
cross-sections on the Tentative Subdivision Map as follows: 

 In Phase 1, Bush Street from Semas Drive to the most westerly gas pipeline easement, 
Semas Drive between Bush Street and the south side of Harvard Drive, and College 
Avenue between the south side of Boston Way and most northerly gas pipeline 
easement.   

 In Phase 2, College Avenue from Boston Way to Pedersen Street, Pedersen Street from 
College Avenue to the east side of Lot 219. 

 In Phase 3, Pedersen Street from the east side of Lot 219 to Semas Drive, Semas Drive 
from the south side of Harvard Drive to Pedersen Street. 

9. Ponding basin and storm drainage improvements shall be constructed per the Major Site Plan 
Review No. 2020-01 comments. 

10. A landscaped trail between the existing gas pipeline easements in the northwest area of the 
project site from Bush Street to College Avenue shall be constructed prior to the final 
inspection of the 5th new home constructed in Phase 2, with a trail connection to the Yale 
Circle cul-de-sac between Lots 176 and 177 and a sidewalk or trail connection from the trail 
to Boston Way along College Avenue. The acreage of the landscaped area may be counted 
toward park land dedication requirements in Section 8-7N-4 of the City Municipal Code. The 
landscaping and amenities will include, but not be limited to, trees, shrubbery, grass, waste 
containers at each end of the trail, solar-powered lighting at 120-foot intervals, and three 
benches.  Signage at the trail ends at Bush Street and College Avenue shall be required.  
Landscaping, amenities and signage to be approved by the Community Development Director 
prior to installation. 

11. The park south of West Hills Way shall be constructed and opened to the public for use, 
including playground amenities, prior to completion of the 5th home in Phase 1 (not including 
model homes).   

12. Park land in-lieu fees shall be paid to the City for 5.79 acres minus the acres provided for the 
park and landscaped trail on the improvement plans, in accordance with the procedures in 
Section 8-7N-4 of the City Municipal Code. Fees shall be paid prior to approval of the Final 
Map. 

13. A public facilities maintenance district (PFMD) shall be formed in conjunction with the Final 
Map acceptance in order to provide the maintenance costs for the park, landscape trail, 
common landscaping, street maintenance, and other improvements in accordance with 
existing City policy. 

14. The project shall be subject to the applicable development impact fees adopted by resolution 
of the City Council. 



   

15. In conjunction with approval of the Final Map, a noise and odor easement shall be recorded 
on all lots created, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, to acknowledge the presence of 
nearby industry, railroad, and freeways, and the right of the such uses to continue to emit 
such noise and odors as are otherwise allowable by law and to ensure that such uses in these 
areas are not unreasonably hindered by residential users and owners that move in or nearby 
at a later date. 

16. In conjunction with approval of the Final Map, an easement shall be recorded on all lots 
created identifying that the property is near a military installation subject to high aircraft noise, 
low level aircraft, aircraft tests, and/or other military related issues.  

17. New residences shall be constructed so as to attain an indoor noise level of 45 decibels (45 
dB CNEL), in accordance with noise attenuation standards of the City adopted building code. 

18. The developer shall comply with the standards, provisions, and requirements of the San 
Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District that relate to the project. 

19. A minimum six-foot eight-inch (6’ 8”) high block wall with decorative columns and caps at least 
every 100 feet shall be constructed per City standards adjacent to College Avenue, Pedersen 
Street, Semas Drive, and Bush Street adjacent to Lots 155 and 156.  Landscaping shall be 
added to cover at least 50% of the wall within five years of installation. 

20. A wrought iron fence (or equivalent material acceptable to the Community Development 
Director) shall be constructed to City standards along the west property lines of lots 157 to 
177 to separate the subdivision from the trail. 

21. Fire hydrant and connection types and locations shall be approved by the Lemoore Volunteer 
Fire Department. 

22. Concrete pads for installation of mailboxes shall be provided in accordance with 
determinations made by the Lemoore Postmaster. 

23. Street trees from the City approved street tree list shall be planted with root barriers as per 
Public Works Standards and Specifications. 

24. Streetlights shall be provided within the project as per City local streetlight standards.  

25. One or more Kings Area Rural Transit (KART) bus stops shall be constructed, if required, at 
locations directed by KART. 

26. The sidewalk type along local streets (parkway type or curb adjacent type) shall be consistent 
throughout all phases of the subdivision, as per City standards. 

27. The sidewalk type along arterial and collector streets shall be parkway type and consistent 
with City standards.  

28. Any existing roadway, sidewalk, or curb and gutter that is damaged during construction shall 
be repaired or replaced to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director. 

29. Subdivision entrance signage is required at the Harvard Drive entrance.  Subdivision entrance 
signage shall be allowed at other entrances.  All signs shall require a sign permit separate 
from the building permit. 



   

30. Lot sizes less than 7,000 square feet, consistent with the sizes shown on the Tentative 
Subdivision Map Tract 848, shall be adopted per the PUD established by the City Council. 

31. The building setbacks shall be per the adopted PUD established by the City Council.  The 
minimum building setbacks recommended to the Council are as follows:  

 
Required Setbacks PUD No. 2020-01 

Front to Living Space (minimum) 
12 feet to one-story - See note 
12 feet to covered porch 
15 feet to two-story  

Front to Garage (minimum) 20 feet 

Interior Side (minimum) 5 feet 

Street Side (minimum) 10 feet 

Rear (minimum) 10 feet for one-story 
15 feet for two-story 

Height (maximum) 35 feet 

Note – Plan 7512 (Olive) may have a 10-foot minimum front setback to living 
space on lots less than 84 feet deep.  Plan 7512 (Olive) shall not be 
constructed on corner lots less than 84 feet deep. 

 

32. Master home plans shall be substantially consistent to the floor plans and elevations submitted 
with the Tentative Subdivision Map Tract 848 and as modified by this amendment to the major 
site plan review, unless subsequently modified by the Planning Commission. Detailing used 
on the front of the home shall be carried around (or wrapped around) to the street side of the 
home where the side of the home is visible from the public street, such as in front of the fence. 
In addition to typical submittal requirements for building permit to determine consistency with 
Section 9-5C-3 B2a (the six-pack requirement), a color palette shall be submitted with each 
building permit application to verify that the combination similar floor plans in the 6-pack will 
have enough variation between a combination of elevation design and paint color to be 
considered ‘substantially different from one another’. 

33. The project and all subsequent uses must meet the requirements found in Section 9-5B-2 of 
the Zoning Ordinance related to noise, odor, and vibration, and maintenance. 

34. The Tentative Subdivision Map Tract 848 approval shall expire two years from the date of City 
Council approval, unless a Final Map is filed or an extension is granted via legislation or by 
the City, in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act. Expiration dates for the Major Site Plan 
Review 2020-01 and Planned Unit Development  
2020-01 shall run consistent with the expiration date of the Tentative Subdivision Map. 

 
 
 
 
 



   

 
 
Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore 
held on January 23, 2023, by the following votes: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAINING: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 
 
 

       
, Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 
 



LENNAR- TRACT 848
AVERTINE

Modification to 
Major Site Plan 

Review

1



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Original Approved 
Elevations……………………………………3
Proposed Elevations 
(Renderings)………………………………..4
Proposed Elevations 
(Architectural)……………………………...7
Exterior Color 
schemes………………………...………....10

848 Map with Plan numbers and Color 
Selections………………………………….16

2



ORIGINAL APPROVED ELEVATIONS

3



PROPOSED ELEVATIONS (RENDERINGS) 4

7512 A Remove scabbed on roof above bedroom 3. Remove one
carriage light above garage. Change garage door to 4 panel door. Add
decorative vent above bedroom window. Upgrade front door to larger
glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color schemes.

7512 B Remove scabbed on roof above bedroom 3. Remove one
carriage light above garage. Change garage door to 4 panel door. Add
decorative vent above bedroom window. Upgrade front door to larger
glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color schemes.

7512 C Remove scabbed on roof above bedroom 3. Remove one
carriage light above garage. Change garage surround from stone/brick to
stucco. Change garage door to 4 panel door with windows. Add
decorative vent addition above bedroom window. Upgrade front door to
larger glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color schemes.



PROPOSED ELEVATIONS (RENDERINGS) 5

7514 A Change garage door to 4 panel door. Upgrade front door to
larger glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color schemes.

7514 B Change garage door to 4 panel door. Upgrade front door to
larger glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color schemes.

7514 C Change garage surround from stone/brick to stucco. Change
garage door to 4 panel door with windows. Upgrade front door to larger
glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color schemes.



PROPOSED ELEVATIONS (RENDERINGS) 6

7515 A Replace scabbed on roof above garage with decorative stucco
band. Change garage door to 4 panel door. Replace siding on front
facing gable with stucco. Add carriage lights to either side of the garage.
Change entry post from stucco to stone. Upgrade front door to larger
glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color schemes.

7515 B Replace scabbed on roof above garage with decorative stucco
band. Change garage door to 4 panel door. Change shingle cladding on
garage portion of the house to stucco. Add carriage lights to either side
of the garage. Change entry post from stucco to stone. Upgrade front
door to larger glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color
schemes.

7515 C Replace scabbed on roof above garage with decorative stucco
band. Change garage door to 4 panel door. Add carriage lights to either
side of the garage. Change garage door to 4 panel door with windows.
Change entry post from stucco to stone. Upgrade front door to larger
glass panel. Variation in roof color added to color schemes.



PROPOSED ELEVATIONS (ARCHITECTURAL)

7
5
1
2

7



PROPOSED ELEVATIONS (ARCHITECTURAL)

7
5
1
4

8



PROPOSED ELEVATIONS (ARCHITECTURAL)

7
5
1
5

9



COLOR SELECTION SPREADSHEET
10



COLOR SCHEMES
11



COLOR SCHEMES
12



COLOR SCHEMES
13



COLOR SCHEMES
14



COLOR SCHEMES
15



MAP WITH PLANS AND COLOR SELECTIONS

16















2,985 SQUARE FEET2,985 SQUARE FEET2,086 SQUARE FEET2,086 SQUARE FEET1,635 SQUARE FEET1,635 SQUARE FEET1,460 SQUARE FEET1,460 SQUARE FEET

The Plum, Plan 7511 The Olive, Plan 7512 The Dewberry, Plan 7514 The Persimmon, Plan 7515












































































